## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

DERRICK ACKERS, a/k/a DERICK ACRES,	)
Petitioner,	) ) )
versus	$\frac{1}{2}$ s.ct. case no. $\frac{3003}{12}$
STATE OF FLORIDA,	) DCA CASE NO. 91-735
Respondent.	) )

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

## PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

PAOLO E. ANNINO ASSESTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Plorida Bar No. 0379166 112-A Orange Avenue Daytona Beach, FL 32114

Phone: 904-252-3367

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In Case Number CR90-10093, the State charged Petitioner, Mr. Ackers, with Robbery With a Firearm, in violation of Section 812.13(2)(a), Florida Statutes (1990). (R409)

On March 5, 1991, the State filed "Notice of Intention to Use Similar Fact Evidence." (R451) The State attached the Information in Case No. CR90-9660/a, as the subject of this Notice. See Appendix B.

On March 22, 1991, the Honorable Gary L. Formet, Sr. held a pretrial hearing on the Defense's Motion in Limine, seeking to exclude the alleged similar fact evidence, the Kentucky Fried Chicken Robbery, Case Number CR90-9660/a, which was the subject of the State's Notice. Judge Formet granted the Defense's Motion in Limine, and issued an order which reads: "Ordered and adjudged that the Defense Motion in Limine is granted, and all evidence pertaining to the robbery of the Kentucky Fried Chicken charged in Case Number CR90-9660/a is hereby excluded from the trial of the above-styled cause." (R455) See Appendix C.

The State filed an appeal from this pretrial, non-final order. (R457)

On December 9, 1991, Mr. Ackers filed in the Fifth District Court of Appeal, a Motion to Dismiss the State's appeal for lack of jurisdiction. See Appendix D.

On February 18, 1992, the Fifth District Court of Appeal in DCA Case Number 91-735, denied Mr. Ackers' Motion to Dismiss.

See Appendix E.

On May 15, 1992, the Fifth District Court of Appeal agreed with the State and reversed the trial court's order excluding similar fact evidence of the Kentucky Fried Chicken robbery. See Appendix A.

Petitioner filed timely Notice of Appeal to this Honorable Court.

# STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The State appealed a pretrial, non-final order to the Fifth District Court of Appeal. The State filed its appeal prior to the selection of a jury. Hence, the facts in the instant case have not been heard by a jury.

In summary fashion, Mr. Ackers is accused of robbing a Popeye's Fried Chicken Restaurant. In a prior case, which is the subject of the State's <u>Williams</u> Rule notice, Mr. Ackers was convicted of robbing a Kentucky Fried Chicken Restaurant.

# SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court should accept jurisdiction, because the instant decision conflicts with <u>McPhadder v. State</u>, 475 So.2d 1215 (Fla. 1985), and because the Fifth District Court of Appeal lacked jurisdiction to rule on the State's pretrial appeal of a non-final order.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN STATE V. ACKERS, DCA CASE NUMBER 91-735 (FLA. 5TH DCA MAY 15, 1992), EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THIS HONORABLE COURT IN MCPHADDER V. STATE, 475 SO.2D 1215 (FLA. 1985).

This Honorable Court should accept jurisdiction in the instant case, because the instant decision expressly and directly conflicts with <a href="McPhadder v. State">McPhadder v. State</a>, 475 So.2d 1215 (Fla. 1985).

The Fifth District Court of Appeal decision reads in part:

The State appeals the trial court's order which granted Defense counsel's motion in limine to exclude similar fact evidence concerning Ackers' commission of another crime in order to **prove** his identity in connection with the robbery with a firearm charge being prosecuted in this case. The trial court ruled that the facts and circumstances of the other robbery, with which Ackers had been convicted, were not sufficiently similar to allow admission pursuant to the <u>Williams</u> Rule.

# See Appendix A.

In the instant case, the State filed a "Notice of Intention to Use Similar Fact Evidence." See Appendix B. This Notice expresses the State's intent to introduce into evidence facts of a prior robbery, the Kentucky Fried Chicken robbery. In this Notice, the State attached the Information of the Kentucky Fried Chicken robbery, as the subject of the Notice. See Appendix B. The trial court's pretrial order excludes all evidence pertaining to the robbery of the Kentucky Fried Chicken robbery. See Appendix C. The State appealed this pretrial, non-final order to the Fifth District Court of Appeal.

The issue on this appeal is whether the Fifth District Court of Appeal had jurisdiction to entertain the State appeal from a non-final order, which excludes <u>Williams</u> Rule evidence. Petitioner submits that this is not an appealable order, because it is not authorized by the appellate rules, in specific, Rule 9.140(c)(1)(B), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. In <u>McPhadder v. State</u>, 475 So.2d 1215 (Fla. 1875), this Honorable Court stated:

The rule provides, in pertinent part, that the State may appeal an order suppressing before trial confessions, admissions or evidence obtained by search and seizure ... The evidence at issue consisted of statements made by an informant on electronic recorded tapes which were suppressed because the informant was unavailable and could not be called at trial. We see no search and seizure issue.

#### Id. 1216.

The McPhadder decision stands for the proposition that under Rule 9.140(c)(1)(B), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, the State may only appeal a pretrial, non-final order which directly addresses a "search and seizure issue." Id. Based on McPhadder, the fact that the evidence was "obtained by search and seizure" is not sufficient grounds for a State pretrial appeal. The trial court's order must directly address "trial confessions, admissions or evcidence obtained by search and seizure." Rule 9.140(c)(1)(B), Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure.

The pretrial order in this case did not <u>directly</u> address a "search and seizure issue." In the instant case, the trial court did not face a Fourth Amendment issue, but the issue of whether

or not a prior robbery should be allowed into evidence based on Williams Rule. The issue on pretrial was whether the prior crime was similar or dissimilar to the instant crime. The Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this case is instructive on this very point, i.e. it does not address in its written decision any search or seizure issues. It addresses only the Williams Rule evidence.

In conclusion, based on the expressed and direct conflict with <a href="McPhadder">McPhadder</a>, Petitioner requests this Honorable Court to accept jurisdiction.

#### CONCLUSION

BASED ON the argument contained herein, and authorities cited in support thereof, Petitioner requests that this Honorable Court accept jurisdiction.