FILED SUD J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

DERRICK ACKERS,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

CASE NO. 80,037 5th DCA CASE NO. 91-735

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL,
FIFTH DISTRICT

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

ROBERT A GENERARWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

NANCY RYAN
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #765910
210 N. Palmetto Ave.
Suite 447
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The petitioner argues that the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case expressly and directly conflicts with this court's decision in McPhadder v. State, 475 So.2d 1215 (Fla. 1985). The decisions neither expressly nor directly conflict. Moreover, this court has expressly resolved the issue raised in the petitioner's jurisdictional brief in decisions issued since McPhadder. This court need not, and should not, exercise its discretionary power to review the district court's decision in this case.

ARGUMENT

THE PETITIONER HAS SHOWN NEITHER EXPRESS NOR DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN DECISIONS.

The petitioner, Derrick Ackers, asserts that the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case expressly and directly conflicts with this court's decision in McPhadder v. State, 475 So.2d 1215 (Fla. 1985). The decisions neither expressly nor directly conflict. Moreover, this court resolved the issue raised in the petitioner's jurisdictional brief in its decisions in Brea v. State, 530 So.3d 924 (Fla. 1988) and Palmore v. State, 495 So.2d 1170 (Fla. 1986). This court need not, and should not, exercise its discretionary power to review the district court's decision in this case.

The district court's decision does not mention McPhadder, and does not discuss the appellate courts' jurisdiction to hear state appeals. The district court did consider the issue of its jurisdiction in this case, and resolved that issue by an order denying Mr. Ackers' motion to dismiss the appeal.' However, since the district court's decision does not expressly address the matter as to which conflict is asserted, this court should decline to accept jurisdiction in this case. See Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1986) (implied or inherent conflict insufficient); Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829

The petitioner's jurisdictional brief includes, **as** its Exhibits D and E, his Motion to Dismiss filed in the district court and the order denying that motion. Exhibit A to this brief is the state's response, filed in the district court, to that motion to dismiss.

(Fla. 1986) (disagreement must appear within four corners of majority opinion of case in which review sought); <u>Jenkins v.</u>

<u>State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980) ("express" means "represent[ed] in words").

Nor is there direct conflict between the decision in this case and the decision in McPhadder, since the facts of the two cases are distinguishable. See Department of Revenue v. Johnston, 442 So. 2d 950 (Fla. 1983). In this case, the trial court excluded "all evidence pertaining to the robbery...charged in CR90-9660A." (See Exhibit C to petitioner's jurisdictional brief) The evidence introduced in the trial of case no. 90-9660, which Judge Formet presided over before he entered the order in limine in this case, included admissions made by the petitioner, admissions made by his co-defendant, and evidence seized by the police. (Exhibit A to this brief at paragraph 4; Exhibit B to this brief) In McPhadder, the disputed order in limine excluded taped statements made by a police informant. Those statements are not party admissions or confessions, and were not evidence seized by the police. McPhadder at 1216. See Brea v. State, 530 So.2d 924, 926 (Fla. 1988); State v. Palmore, 495 So. 2d 1170 (Fla. 1986).

The petitioner argues that $\underline{McPhadder}$ stands for a rule that the state, pursuant to Rule 9.140(c)(1)(B), can appeal only orders which suppress on fourth amendment grounds confessions, admissions or other evidence. That rule provides that

² Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

[t]he State may appeal an order suppressing before trial confessions, admissions or evidence obtained by search and seizure.

This court, in <u>Palmore</u>, <u>supra</u>, expressly held that the language "obtained by search and seizure" modifies only "evidence," and not "confessions" or "admissions." 495 So.2d at 1171. See also Brea, <u>supra</u>. The district court's decision in this case, in short, is consistent with <u>McPhadder</u> and with this court's other decisions on this point.

CONCLUSION

The Respondent requests this court to decline to exercise its discretionary power to review this matter.